

## PLANNING COMMITTEE

### MINUTES OF THE MULTI-LOCATIONAL MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE AND VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON WEDNESDAY, 12<sup>TH</sup> JUNE 2024 AT 5:00 PM

### PRESENT:

Councillor R. Saralis – Chair Councillor Mrs E. M. Aldworth – Vice Chair

#### Councillors:

M. A. Adams, A. Angel, R. Chapman, N. Dix, A. Hussey, B. Miles, M. Powell, J. Simmonds, S. Williams, A. Whitcombe and K. Woodland.

Cabinet Member: Councillor P. Leonard (Planning and Public Protection).

Together with:

V. Julian (Senior Lawyer), R. Thomas (Planning Services Manager), C. Powell (Team Leader Development Management), H. Winsall (Principal Planner), M. Tanner (Principal Engineer), M. Godfrey (Team Leader - Pollution Control), C. Campbell (Transportation Engineering Manager) and S. Hughes (Committee Services Officer).

Also present to speak on applications: Agenda Item 5 – Councillor E. Forehead (Local Ward Member).

#### **RECORDING, FILMING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS**

The Chair reminded those present that the meeting was being live-streamed and recorded and would be made available following the meeting via the Council's website – <u>Click Here to View</u>. Members were advised that voting on decisions would be taken via Microsoft Forms.

#### 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors G. Ead, J. Fussell and J. Taylor.

#### 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of the meeting.

#### 3. PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 15<sup>TH</sup> MAY 2024

It was moved and seconded that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 15<sup>th</sup> May 2024 be agreed as a correct record. By way of Microsoft Forms and verbal confirmation (and in noting there were 12 for, 0 against and 0 abstentions) this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 15<sup>th</sup> May 2024 (minute nos. 1-6) be approved as a correct record.

The Planning Committee considered the applications in the order recorded below.

# 5. APPLICATION NO: 24/0120/LA - LAND AT GRID REF 316303 186554, CAERPHILLY BUSINESS PARK, CAERPHILLY

The Planning Case Officer presented the application, with it confirmed in the accompanying report that the recommendation in respect of the proposal had taken full account of, and was in conformity with, both Future Wales and Planning Policy Wales Edition 12. The Planning Case Officer verbally advised the Committee that two objections to the application have been received since the publication of the report relating to the depth of the proposed swimming pool and provision of spectator seating.

Councillor E. Forehead (Local Ward Member) spoke in support of the application.

Following consideration of the application it was moved and seconded that subject to the conditions contained in the Officer's report, the recommendation be approved. By way of Microsoft Forms and verbal confirmation (and in noting there were 13 for, 0 against and 0 abstentions) this was unanimously agreed.

**RESOLVED** that: -

- (i) Subject to the conditions contained in the Officer's report, the application be GRANTED.
- (ii) The applicant be advised:

NOTIFICATION OF INITIATION OF DEVELOPMENT AND DISPLAY OF NOTICE:

You must comply with your duties in section 71ZB (notification of initiation of development and display of notice: Wales) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The duties include:

#### Notice of initiation of development:

Before beginning any development to which this planning permission relates, notice must be given to the local planning authority in the form set out in Schedule 5A to the town and Country Planning (development Management procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 or in a form substantially to the like effect. The form sets out the details which must be given to the local planning authority to comply with this duty.

#### **Display of Notice:**

The person carrying out the development to which this planning permission relates must display at or near the place where the development is being carried out, at all times when it is being carried out, a notice of this planning permission in the form set out in Schedule 5B to the Town and

country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 or in a form substantially to the like effect. The form sets out the details the person carrying out development must display to comply with this duty.

The person carrying out the development must ensure the notice is: (a) Firmly affixed and displayed in a prominent place at or near the place where the development is being carried out;

(b) legible and easily visible to the public without having to enter the site; and

(c) printed on durable material. The person carrying out development should take reasonable steps to protect the notice (against it being removed, obscured or defaced) and, if need be, replace it.

(iii) The applicant be advised that in respect of the details required to discharge the landscaping condition (condition 20), the following details would be expected to be submitted (but not exclusively so) as part of final landscaping scheme:

Protection from vehicles for all trees within the car parking area, in the form proprietary steel painted guards;

A suitably scaled plan and detailed drawing showing the below ground load supporting crate system and available rooting volume, means of watering and aeration and soil make up for each tree planted within the car parking area;

Below ground support for trees at the site entrance associated with the new building and Acer campestre 'Streetwise' located in the larger carpark;

Composted bark mulch at 1.2m dia. and 75mm depth and protection with a strimmer guard for all trees located within grass wildflower meadows including SuDS areas;

Larger sizes for ornamental shrubs given the importance of the proposed development and location at the entrance and approach to the building, in a revised planting plan;

Clarification of the planting details along with maintenance details for the green roof;

A landscape specification for all planting and seeding, with details on means of planting and seeding, operations, ground preparation, watering etc;

Details of surfacing materials, boundary treatments and walls;

Suitable habitat for the dingy skipper butterfly;

The recreation of areas of marshy grassland;

Street furniture, including benches, cycle parking, bike shelter, bins, bollards and appearance of lighting, any free standing CCTV.

(iv) The applicant be advised: WARNING:

SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE APPROVAL IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF THIS DEVELOPMENT.

Please note from 7<sup>th</sup> January 2019, Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 commenced in Wales requiring all new developments of more than one house or where the construction area is of 100m2 or more to implement sustainable drainage to manage on-site surface water. Surface water drainage systems must be designed and built in accordance with mandatory standards for sustainable drainage published by Welsh Ministers.

The Sustainable Drainage Approval process is a technical approval independent of the need to obtain planning permission, and as such you are advised to contact the Sustainable Drainage Approval Body. Their details are provided below:

Phone: 01443 866511 Email: drainage@caerphilly.gov.uk Website: www.caerphilly.gov.uk/sab

(v) The applicant be advised: WARNING – SEPARATE APPROVAL UNDER THE LAND DRAINAGE ACT (1991) / CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL LAND DRAINAGE BYELAWS (2018) REQUIRED:

Please note that Caerphilly County Borough Council operate Land Drainage Byelaws and that works on a near a watercourse may require Ordinary Watercourse Consent (OWC).

The erection or construction of any Building or Structure within the Byelaws distance is only permitted following written consent from the Lead Local Flood Authority. Planning Permission granted here does not remove the requirement for approval from the Lead Local Flood Authority to be obtained.

You are advised to contact the Lead Local Flood Authority. Their contact details are provided below:

Phone: 01443 866511 Email: drainage@caerphilly.gov.uk

- (vi) The applicant be advised that if the development will give rise to a new discharge (or alter an existing discharge) of trade effluent, directly or indirectly to the public sewerage system, then a Discharge Consent under Section 118 of the Water Industry Act 1991 is required from Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water. Please note that the process for applying for a Discharge Consent is independent of the planning process and an application for consent may be refused even though planning permission may have already been granted.
- (vii) The applicant be advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be recorded on Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water's maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes for Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist in dealing with the proposal the applicant may contact Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water. Under the Water Industry

Act 1991 Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.

- (viii) The applicant be advised that they may need to apply to Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water for any connection to the public sewer under S106 of the Water industry Act 1991. If the connection to the public sewer network is either via a lateral drain (i.e., a drain which extends beyond the connecting property boundary) or via a new sewer (i.e., serves more than one property), it is now a mandatory requirement to first enter into a Section 104 Adoption Agreement (Water Industry Act 1991). The design of the sewers and lateral drains must also conform to the Welsh Ministers Standards for Gravity Foul Sewers and Lateral Drains and conform with the publication "Sewers for Adoption"- 7th Edition. Further information can be obtained via the Developer Services pages of www.dwrcymru.com.
- (ix) The applicant be advised that the planning permission hereby granted does not extend any rights to carry out any works permissions required by the Water industries Act 1991. Any alterations to existing premises resulting in the creation of additional premises or merging of existing premises must also be constructed so that each is separately connected to the Company's water main and can be separately metered. Please contact DCWW's new connections team on 0800 917 2652 for further information on water and sewerage connections.
- (x) In accordance with Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12) and Technical Advice Note 12 (Design), the applicant be advised to take a sustainable approach in considering water supply in new development proposals, including utilising approaches that improve water efficiency and reduce water consumption. It is recommended that the applicant liaises with the Local Authority Building Control Team to discuss their water efficiency requirements.
- (xi) The applicant be advised that the treatment and disposal of contaminated soils and groundwater is regulated by waste legislation and requires an environmental permit.

Excavated materials that are recovered via a treatment operation can be re-used on-site under the CL:AIRE Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of Practice. This voluntary Code of Practice provides a framework for determining whether or not excavated material arising from site during remediation and/or land development works are waste.

Developers should ensure that all contaminated materials are adequately characterised both chemically and physically, and that the permitting status of any proposed on site operations are clear. If in doubt, Natural Resources Wales should be contacted for advice at an early stage to avoid any delays.

Natural Resources Wales recommends that developers should:

- 1. Follow the risk management framework provided in Land contamination risk management (LCRM)
- 2. Refer to 'Land Contamination: a guide for developers (WLGA, 2017) for the type of information that we require in order to assess risks to controlled waters from the site. The Local Authority can advise on risk to other receptors, such as human health.

3. Refer to the Environment Agency's (2017) 'Approach to Groundwater Protection'

# 4. APPLICATION NO: 22/0713/RET - THE MEADOWS FARM VILLAGE RETREAT, THE MEADOWS, GYPSY LANE, GROESWEN, CARDIFF

The Planning Case Officer presented the application, with it confirmed in the accompanying report that the recommendation in respect of the proposal had taken full account of, and was in conformity with, both Future Wales and Planning Policy Wales Edition 12.

Following consideration of the application it was moved and seconded that subject to the conditions contained in the Officer's report, the recommendation be approved. By way of Microsoft Forms and verbal confirmation (and in noting there were 13 for, 0 against and 0 abstentions) this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that: -

- (i) Subject to the conditions contained in the Officer's report, the application be GRANTED.
- (ii) The applicant be advised: WARNING: SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE APPROVAL IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF THIS DEVELOPMENT.

Please note from 7<sup>th</sup> January 2019, Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 commenced in Wales requiring all new developments of more than one house or where the construction area is of 100m2 or more to implement sustainable drainage to manage on-site surface water. Surface water drainage systems must be designed and built in accordance with mandatory standards for sustainable drainage published by Welsh Ministers.

The Sustainable Drainage Approval process is a technical approval independent of the need to obtain planning permission, and as such you are advised to contact the Sustainable Drainage Approval Body. Their details are provided below:

Phone: 01443 866511 Email: drainage@caerphilly.gov.uk Website: <u>www.caerphilly.gov.uk/sab</u>

(iii) WARNING - SEPARATE APPROVAL UNDER THE LAND DRAINAGE ACT (1991) / CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL LAND DRAINAGE BYELAWS (2018) REQUIRED: Please note that Caerphilly County Borough Council operate Land Drainage Byelaws and that works on a near a watercourse may require Ordinary Watercourse Consent (OWC).

The erection or construction of any Building or Structure within the Byelaws distance is only permitted following written consent from the Lead Local Flood Authority. Planning Permission granted here does not remove the requirement for approval from the Lead Local Flood Authority to be

obtained. You are advised to contact the Lead Local Flood Authority. Their contact details are provided below:

Phone: 01443 866511 Email: drainage@caerphilly.gov.uk Website: <u>https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Services/Roadsand-</u> pavements/Flood-riskmanagement/Consent-to-work-on-an-ordinarywatercourse

The meeting closed at 5.43 pm.

Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 10<sup>th</sup> July 2024, they were signed by the Chair.

CHAIR